# Teva Lisinopril and Hydrochlorothiazide 10 mg/12.5 mg & 20 mg/12.5 mg Tablets lisinopril and hydrochlorothiazide

Package leaflet: Information for the Read all of this leaflet carefully before you start taking this medicine because it contains important information for you.

- mortant information for you. Keep this leaflet. You may need to read it again. If you have further questions, please ask your doctor or pharmacist. This medicine has been prescribed for you only. Do not pass it on to others. It may harm them, even if their signs of illness are the same as yours.
- them, even if their signs of illness are the same as yours. If you get any side effects, talk to your doctor or pharmacist. This includes any possible side effects not listed in this leaflet. See section 4.

## Teva Lisinopril and Hydrochlorothiazide will be referred to as "Lisinopril/HCTZ" throughout this leaflet.

### What is in this leaflet

- 1. What Lisinopril/HCTZ is and what it is used

# for 2. What you need to know before you take Lisinopril/HCTZ 3. How to take Lisinopril/HCTZ 4. Possible side effects 5. How to store Lisinopril/HCTZ 6. Contents of the pack and other information What Lisinopril/HCTZ is and what it is used for

## Lisinopril/HCTZ contains lisinopril and hydrochlorothiazide

hydrochlorothiazide. Lisinopri belongs to a group of drugs called angiotensin-converting enzyme (ACE) inhibitors. ACE inhibitors are vasodilators (drugs which widen the blood vessels making it easier for the heart to pump blood around the body).

the body). Hydrochlorothiazide belongs to a group of drugs called diuretics or "water tablets". Diuretic medicines increase the amount of water you lose in your urine and therefore reduce the amount of fluid in your blood vessels.

vessels. Because each of these drugs reduces blood pressure in a different way. Lisinopril/HCT2 may be used together to treat high blood pressure when taking either of these drugs alone did not control your blood pressure sufficiently.

## What you need to know before you take Lisinopril/HCTZ

- What you need to know before you take Lisinopri/HCTZ Do not take Lisinopri/HCTZ : I if you are allergic to lisinogi of the other ingredines of this medicine (listed in section 6) if you are allergic to sulphonamides (e.g., trimethoprim). If you have suffered an unexplained allergic reaction or an allergic reaction to any other ACE inhibitors, e.g. captopril, enalapril, which has led to swelling of the face, lips, tongue and/or throat If you have been diagnosed with a condition known as hereditary angloederma or have a swelling of the skin in a particular area which commonly affects the eyes, lips, nose. tongue, voice box (larynx), hands, or bowel) If you have severe liver or kidney problems. If you are more than 3 months pregnant. (It is also better to avoid Lisinopri/HCTZ in early pregnancy see section Pregnancy and breast-feeding). If you have taken or are currently taking sucubitivylastanta. a medicine used to trast

- pressure lowering macicine containing aliskiren. if you have taken or are currently taking sacubiril/valsartan, a medicine used to treat a type of long-term (chronic) heart failure in aduts, as the risk of angioedema (rapid swelling under the skin in an area such as the throat) is increased. Wanings and precautions Tak to your doctor or pharmacist before taking Usingni/MCTZ: if you think you are (or micht become)

- Ik to your doctor or pharmacist before taking importiVHCTS inf your think you are (or might become) pregnant. LisinoprifWHCT ablets are not recommended in early pregnancy and may three months of pregnancy (see section 'Pregnancy and breast-feeding'). If you experienced breathing or lung problems (including inflammation or fluid in the lungs) following hydrochlorothiazide intak in the past. If you develop any severe shortness of breath or difficulty breathing after taking Lisinopri/HRCT2, seek 'medical attention mimorilately. I you are at risk of high levels of potassium your blood e.g. from taking potassium-containing salt substitutes or supplements.
- potassium-containing supplements if you have been on a low sodium diet if you are suffering from diarrhoea or
- if you are suffering from diarrhoea or vomiting
   if you have an imbalance of salts in your
- if you have heart (aortic or mitral) valve disease or an enlarged heart

- If you have an imbalance of salts in your blood
  If you have heart (aortic or mitral) valve disease on enlarged heart
  If you have liver disease or liver problems
  If you have liver disease or liver problems in your blood blood set your mitdlabetic medicine (including insulin)
  If you have problems with your blood wessels (collagen vascular disease).
  If you have problems with your blood vessels (collagen vascular disease).
  If you have blood circulation problems in the heart or brain, as an excessive drop in blood pressure can usel to a heart attack or stroke.
  If you have blood circulation problems in the heart or brain, as an excessive drop in blood pressure can lead to a heart attack or stroke.
  If you have a history of allergy, bronchial is an allergic condition causing joint pain, rashes and fever)
  You need blood separation treatment (apheresis) or desantitication treatment (apheresis) or desantitic row dotor may wish to interrupt treatment with this medicine. The lift hour blood staff you a take tihning line discline, as there was the story or a general anaesthetic. Tell the doctor, dentist or hospital staff you are taking this mands shaned substance may be a sudden for model to a baned subtance may be a sudden used blood separation treatment (apheresis) or desantition treatment and the doctor, dentist or hospital staff you are taking this mand subtance may give a positive result in anti-doping tests
  You have had skin cancer or if you develop an unexpected skin lesion during

- - tests if you have had skin cancer or if you develop an unexpected skin lesion during the treatment. Treatment with hydrochlorothiazide, particularly long term

use with high doses, may increase the risk of some types of skin and lip cancer (non-melanoma skin cancer). Protect your skin from sun exposure and UV rays while taking Lisinopri/HCTZ. If you are of black race or Afro-Caribbean origin: ACE inhibitors may be less effective in lowering blood pressure in this group of patients and a higher dose of this medicine may be needed. If you are taking any of the following

- may be needed if you are taking any of the following medicines used to treat high blood pres an angiotensin II receptor blocker (ARBs) (latos known as sartans for example valsartan, telmisartan, irbesartan), in particular if you have diabetes-related kidney problems aliskiren
- aliskiren. you are taking any of the following redicines, the risk of angioedema may be

- If you are taking any of the following medicines, the risk of angloedema may be increased: racecadoril, a medicine used to treat distribution of the second second and transplant rejection and for cancer (e.g., temsirolimus, sirolimus, everolimus) vildagliptin, a medicine used to treat diabetes medicines containing a tissue plasminogen activator. If you experience a decrease in vision or eye pain. These could be symptoms of fluid accumulation in the vascular layer of the eye (choroidal effusion) or an increase of pressure in your eye and can happen within hours to weeks of taking Lisinopril/HCT2. This can lead to permanent vision loss, if not treated. If you earlier have had a penciliun or sulforamide allergy, you can be at higher risk of developing this. ur doctor may check your king function.

can be at higher risk of developing this. Your doctor may check your kidner function, blood pressure, and the amount of electrolytes (e.g. potasium) in your blood at regular intervals See also information under the heading 'Do not takk Lisinopril/HCTZ' While taking Lisinopril/HCTZ'Tablets Your doctor will monitor your condition closely, take blood tests, check your kidney function and monitor the level of salts in your blood from time to time.

In the other and monitor the tere of sais in your blood from time to time. If you experience sudden swelling of the lips, face, neck, and possibly hands and feet, a rash, difficulty swellowing or breathing, hoarseness; these are signs of a serious allergic reaction called angioedema. This may occur at any time during treatment. There is a allergic reaction patients of black race or Afro-Caribbean origin. If this occurs stop taking the tablets and tell your doctor immediately or go to the casualty department at your nearest hospital. **Children and adolescents** Lisinopril and Hydrochlorothiazide is not Lisinopril and Hydrochlorothiazide in children has not been established. **Other medicines and Lisinopri/HXCTZ** 

- Unter medicines and Lismopni/NR12
   Tell your doctor or pharmacisi if you are taking or have recently taken or might take any other medicines, especially if you are taking any of the following:
   Intractional context of the taken any other distribution of the toilowing:
   Intractional context of the taken any other distribution of the toilowing:
   Intractional context of the taken any other distribution of the toilowing:
   Intractional context of the taken and taken a

- diazoxide (used to treat hypoglycaemia, among other things), amantadine (for the treatment of Parkinson's disease or against severe infections caused by viruses), barbiturates (a type of sedative also used to treat epilepsy), alcohol,

Lisinopril/HCTZ with alcohol: Drinking alcohol when taking Lisinopril/HCTZ can have addictive effects and cause dizziness or light-headedness.

or ingri-readedness. Pregnancy and breast-feeding: If you are pregnant or breast-feeding, think you may be pregnant or are planning to have a baby, ask your doctor or pharmacist for advice before taking this medicine.

before taking this medicine. Pregnancy You must tell your doctor if you think you are for might become) pregnant. Your doctor will normally advise you to stop taking Lisinopri/IACT2 before you become pregnant or as soon as you know you are pregnant and will advise you to take another medicine instead of Lisinopri/IHCT2. Lisinopri/IHCT2 is vergenameded during pregnancy, and must instead of Lisinopril/HCTZ. Lisinopril/HCTZ is not recommended during pregnancy, and must not be taken when more than 3 months pregnant, as it may cause serious harm to your baby if used after the third month of pregnancy.

Always take this medicine exactly as your doctor has told you. Check with your doctor or pharmacist if you are not sure. If you are already taking direvtics, your doctor may reduce your dose of these, or even tell you to stop taking them before you start to take Lisinopril/HCTZ. Wur doctry will monitor use during the start of swollen glands (lymph nodes) instruction of shared to the skin (nettle rash) hair loss (alopecia) Very rare: may affect up to 1 in 10 000 verduced number of platelets in you swollen glands (lymph nodes)

harin coss (alopocia)
hari coss (alopocia)
kidroy rare: may affect up to 1 in 10 000 people
Vour rast king them before you start to take Lisinopril/HCTZ.
Vour dost or vinit monitor you during treatment and this may include blood or urine tests.
Aduits (including elderly: Lisinopril/HCTZ should be taken once a day.
The tablets should be swallowed with a drink of water. Your dose will be decided by your doctor, depending on your response to treatment.
The maximum daily dose of 40 mg Lisinopril/S mg Hydrochlorothia/de should not be exceeded.
If you take more Lisinopril/HCTZ than you should thy ou (ra some else) swallow a lot of the tablets all together or if you think a child has swallowed any of the tablets, contact your
King the sing the swallow a lot of the tablets all together or if you think a child has swallowed ory of the tablets, contact your whole. If you take more Lisinopril/HCT2 than you should If you (or someone else) swallow a lot of the tablets all together or if you think a child has swallowed any of the tablets, contact your nearest hospital casualty department or your doctor immediately. An overdose is likely to cause faintness or dizziness (due to a drop in blood pressure), rapid breathing, anxiety or hoth

Please take this leaflet, any remaining tablets, and the container with you to the hospital or doctor so that they know which tablets were

consumed. If you forget to take Lisinopril/HCTZ Do not take a double does to make up for a forgotten dose. Take one as soon as you remember, unless it is nearly time to take the next one. Take the remaining doses at the correct time.

If you stop taking Lisinopril/HCTZ You should continue to take these tablets for as long as your doctor tells you to. Do not stop taking your medicine without talking to your doctor first even if you feel better.

If you have any further questions on the use of this medicine, ask your doctor or pharmacist. 4 Possible side effects

Like all medicines, this medicine can cause side effects, although not everybody gets them. Stop taking the tablets and tell your doctor immediately or go to the casualty department at your nearest hospital if any of the following happen:

happen: • an allergic reaction (swelling of the lips, face or neck leading to severe difficulty in breathing; skin rash or hives). This is a very serious but uncommon side effect. You may need urgent medical attention or hospitalisation. Tell your doctor immediately if you experience any of the following effects:

- y or une romowing effects: BB heart attack or stroke in susceptible patients m symptoms including feeling or being sick, abdominal and back pain; these may be signs of pancreatitis (inflammation of the pancreas).

- a serious bit uncommon (may affect pancreas).
   being side affects.
   being side affect, being side affect, being side affect, being side affect.
   being side affects have been report and dry. This is a common (may affect people) and side affect.
   being side affect bave been report and dry. This is a common (may affect people) and side affect.
   being side affect bave been report of a low white oall court in the blood. This is very remore may affect put to 1 in 10,000 people) side effect.
   being side effect.
   <l

people) side effect. The following side effects have been reported at the approximate frequencies shown: Common: may affect up to 1 in 10 people tiredness, lethargy Is feeling of tiredness, drowsiness, or lack of energy) I haddache didribue arbeims didribues or being sick.

- trainible of being sick.
   Uncommon: may affect up to 1 in 100 people
   feeling sick
   feeling weak
   a sensation that your surroundings are

- changes in your sensation of taste
  dry mouth
  indigestion

## abdominal pain

- abdominal pain
   rash, itching
   gout (sudden, unexpected, burning pain, as well as swelling, redness, warmth, and stiffness in the affected joint)
   chest pain, awareness of your heart beating (palpitations), fast heart rate
   poor circulation, coldness in the fingers and toes
   muscle spasms and/or weakness, 'pins-and-needles' or numbness (usually in the hands arms, legs or feel)
   impotence (difficulty getting or mood swidg, section)
   mood swidg, sections
   sleep difficulties
   runny and itchy nose
   change in colour in your fingers or toes (Raynaud's phenomenon)
   increased levels of some substance in your blood (urea, creatinine, potasium, liver enzymes).

- Breast-feeding
   Bell your doctor if you are breast-feeding or about to start breast-feeding. Lisioppri/HCT2 is not recommended for mothers who are breast-feeding, and your doctor may choose another treatment for you fyour baby is newtorm, or was born prematurely.
   Breast-feeding. Lisioppri/HCT2 is not recommended for mothers who are breast-feeding or vanishers who are was born prematurely.

   Driving and using machines
   I you reliable or diracy do not drive or operation of you medicine has changed, or if you medicine has changed, or if you to take Lisioppri/HCTZ
   I how to take Lisioppri/HCTZ

   Image ment of the comment of you was born prematurely.
   I how to take Lisioppri/HCTZ

  - Not known: frequency cannot be estimated from the available data skin and lip cancer (Non-melanoma skin cancer)
  - loss of appetite
  - restlessness flushing
  - Idusting Hushing blurred vision, or a yellow tint to your vision, decrease in vision or pain in your eyes due to high pressure (possible signs of fluid accumulation in the vascular layer of the eye (choroidal effusion) or acute angle-closure glaucoma) abnormality of the rhythm or rate of heart

### R/

anje-closure gladobinaj beat beat constipation inflammation of the salivary glands inflammation of the salivary glands damage to blood vessels causing red or purple spots in the skin cutaneous lupus erythematosus, systemic lupus erythematosus, cutaneous lupus erythematosus. Results of tests may show: sugar in the urine high or low lupus protossium, low levels of the saling increased levels of liver enzyme, bone marrow depression and other blood disorders. Reporting of side effects

other blood disorders. **Reporting of side effects**. If you get any side effects, talk to your doctor, pharmacist or nurse. This includes any possible side effects not listed in this leaflet. You can also report side effects directly via the Yellow Card Scheme at <u>www.mhra.gov.uk/yelloward</u> or search for WHRA Yellow Card in the Google Play or Apple App Store. By reporting side effects you can help provide more information on the safety of this medicine.

## 5 How to store Lisinopril/HCTZ

Keep this medicine out of the sight and reach

and a breakline on the other. The product is available in packs of 28, 30, 50, 98, and 100 tablets and in hospital packs of 50 (EAV: unit dose hospital pack), and 100. Not all pack sizes may be marketed. Marketing Authorisation Holder and Manufacturer Marketing Authorisation holder Teva UK Limited, Ridings Point, Whistler Drive, Castleford, WF10 5HX, United Kingdom.

Manufacturer Teva Pharmaceutical Works Company Ltd, Debrecen, Hungary. This leafit was last revised in November 2022. PL 00289/0455-56

 $T = T_{1}$ 57194\_s